
 

[ T y p e  t h e  c o m p a n y  a d d r e s s ]  
 

Page 1 O R D I N A N C E  /  I N S U R A N C E  C O M M I T T E E  S P E C I A L  M E E T I N G  A U G U S T  2 9 T H ,  2 0 1 6  
 

MINUTES 
ORDINANCE / INSURANCE COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 29TH, 2016 

6:00 P.M.  
 

THE ORDINANCE/INSURANCE COMMITTEE MET IN SPECIAL SESSION IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 12 NORTH 
ROWE STREET, PRYOR, OKLAHOMA AT THE ABOVE DATE AND TIME. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: **YOLANDA THOMPSON, JILL WHITE, WILLARD BUCHANAN, SCOTT CRAFT (ALTERNATE) 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairman Yolanda Thompson. Committee members 
present: Chairman Yolanda Thompson, Jill White, Willard Buchanan. Members absent: None. 

 

Others present: Mayor Jimmy Tramel, City Attorney Kim Ritchie, Terry Aylward, Nena Roberts. 
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY APPROVE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 21ST, 2016 SPECIAL MEETING. 
 

No motion was made to approve minutes of the April 21st, 2016 special meeting. New committee 
has no previous committee members. No action was taken. 

 

3. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY RECOMMEND COUNCIL ACTION, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ATTORNEY TO DRAFT AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 
APPLICATION. 

 

Motion was made by White, second by Buchanan authorizing the City Attorney to draft an 
ordinance adopting a Special Event Permit Application. All voted yes. White requested the draft be 
ready for committee review in one month. 

 

4. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY RECOMMEND COUNCIL ACTION, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ATTORNEY TO DRAFT AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING TEMPORARY FOOD TRUCK PERMIT 
APPLICATION. 

 

Motion was made by White, second by Buchanan authorizing the City Attorney to draft an 
ordinance adopting Temporary Food Truck Permit Application. All voted yes. 
Discussion followed regarding the advantages of a Temporary Food Truck Permit and ordinance. 
City Attorney Ritchie pointed out that, if a food truck vendor does not abide by the City’s ordinance, 
police can be called to shut their operation down. 
 

5. DISCUSS ORDINANCE NO. 2015-17 AND ORDINANCE NO. 2015-18. CITY ATTORNEY 
KIM RITCHIE TO ADVISE. NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN. 

 

City Attorney Ritchie presented the issues with Ordinances 2015-17 and 2015-18. The City has to 
be extremely careful not to discriminate against any person or group of persons. Cities absolutely 
cannot prevent these homes from being placed in residential neighborhoods. Cities are prohibited 
by law to set up an ordinance stating the homes have to have a permit to open. There is a major 
difference between an approved treatment facility in which there is constant supervision vs. a 
halfway house or transitional living facility, such as we have. 
Ritchie feels that the main concerns of the citizens are regarding noise, traffic, residents’ criminal 
histories, among other things. We are not legally allowed to ask questions without probable cause. 
Ritchie will be looking into citizens’ concerns without violating anyone’s rights to see if there is 
legitimate reason for concern. 
 



 

[ T y p e  t h e  c o m p a n y  a d d r e s s ]  
 

Page 2 O R D I N A N C E  /  I N S U R A N C E  C O M M I T T E E  S P E C I A L  M E E T I N G  A U G U S T  2 9 T H ,  2 0 1 6  
 

 
6. ADJOURN. 

 

Motion to adjourn was made by Buchanan, second by White. Meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 



Special Event Permit Application - City of Pryor Page 1 
 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION 

FOR PERMIT 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

(THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED LEGIBLY OR IT WILL BE REJECTED) 

 

 

General Information: 

 

Event organizers are required to register all public special events (outdoor festivals, walks/runs, 

parades, carnivals, etc.) with the City of Pryor Creek. 

 

Organizers must submit the Special Event Permit Application form a minimum of 90 days 

prior to the event. 

 

Once received, your event information will be reviewed by the City with input from applicable 

city departments as necessary. 

 

Please do not assume that all aspects of the event will be approved. You may be asked to make 

some changes to your plan based on the availability of city services and nature of your event and 

its impact on the community. 

 

Once your event has been approved, a Certificate of General Liability Insurance naming the City 

of Pryor Creek as an additional insured in the general aggregate amount of $1,000,000 is 

required for events held on public property, as deemed necessary by the City of Pryor Creek.  

 

Upon approval of your event registration, an original copy of the Certificate of Insurance will be 

due at least 30 days prior to event date. The City of Pryor Creek reserves the right to require 

additional insurance for the event as deemed necessary. 

 

All applications must be signed. Those applications not signed will be considered incomplete and 

will not be processed. 

 

By signing this Application For Special Event Permit I have read and understand the City 

of Pryor Creek Special Events Ordinances Sections 3-1A-1 thru 3-1A-11. I understand and 

will be required to adhere to the special event requirements made by the city in the 

permitting process and applicable adopted ordinances. I also understand that in this 

application process more or additional information may be required of me in the 

permitting process and I agree to provide that information to the city. 

IF ADDITIONAL ROOM IS NEEDED TO COMPLETE THE APPLICATION 

ATTACHE ADDITIONAL SHEETS WITH THE INFORMATION. 

NAME OF EVENT: 

______________________________________________________________________________ 



Special Event Permit Application - City of Pryor Page 2 
 

DESCRIPTION OF EVENT: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

EVENT START DATE: ______________________ END DATE: _______________________ 

EVENT SET UP DATE: ______________________ TAKE DOWN DATE: _______________ 

LOCATION OF EVENT: 

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

IS GENERAL PUBLIC INVITED TO THE EVENT: 

__________________________________? 

IS THE EVENT LOCATION TO BE HELD ON CITY PROPERTY: 

_____________________? 

IF EVENT IS ON CITY PROPERTY, SPECIFY ALL THE CITY PROPERTY INVOLVED: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

NAME, ADDRESS, EMAIL ADDRESS, AND PHONE NUMBER OF 

ORGANIZATION/GROUP/INDIVIDUAL PRODUCING/SPONSORING EVENT: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

IS THE SPONSOR A NON-PROFIT:____________________ IF YES ATTACHED COPIES 

OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTATION OF NON-PROFIT STATUS.   

NAME, ADDRESS, EMAIL ADDRESS, AND PHONE NUMBER OF PRIMARY 

CONTACT(S): 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 



Special Event Permit Application - City of Pryor Page 3 
 

EXPECTED NUMBER OF PEOPLE ATTENDING EVENT: 

____________________________ 

IF AN ADMISSION FEE WILL BE CHARGED INDICATE AMOUNT OF ADMISSION 

FEE: _________________________________________________________________________ 

DESCRIBE ALL SPECIAL FEATURES OF THE EVENT THAT WILL BE UTILIZED:  

(STAGES, SOUND SYSTEMS, VEHICLES, ETC): 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

WILL ELECTRICAL POWER BE NEEDED FOR THE EVENT: _______________________? 

IF YES, DESCRIBE IN DETAIL: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

WILL OTHER CITY UTILITY SERVICES BE REQUIRED: __________________________? 

IF YES, DESCRIBE IN DETAIL: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACH A SITE PLAN FOR THE EVENT TO THIS APPLICATION.  YOUR 

APPLICATION IS NOT COMPLETE AND WILL NOT BE PROCESSED WITHOUT AN 

ATTACHED SITE PLAN.  SITE PLAN MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 

 Outline of the entire event venue including the names of all streets or areas that are part 

of the venue and the surrounding area.  If the event involves a moving route of any kind, 

indicate the direction of travel and all street or lane closures.   

The location of fencing, barriers and/or barricades.  Indicate any removable fencing for 

emergency access. 

The location of all stages, platforms, scaffolding, bleachers, grandstands, canopies, tents, 

portable toilets, booths, beer gardens, cooking areas, trash containers and dumpsters, and 

other temporary structures. 

Generator locations and/or source of electricity. 



Special Event Permit Application - City of Pryor Page 4 
 

WILL THERE BE SALES OF ANY KIND ASSOCIATED WITH THE EVENT:  IF SO, 

DESCRIBE IN DETAIL:  (INCLUDING ALCOHOL/BEER/WINE) 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

WILL THERE BE COOKING IN THE EVENT AREA:  IF SO, EXPLAIN IN DETAIL 

INCLUDING HEAT SOURCES: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

WILL MOBILE FOOD ESTABLISHMENTS BE UTILIZED:  (TRUCKS/TRAILERS/CARTS) 

IF SO DESCRIBE IN DETAIL: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ARE YOU REQUESTING STREET CLOSINGS:  ________________ IF SO, CLEARLY SET 

THIS ASPECT OF THE EVENT FORTH ON THE ATTACHED SITE PLAN. 

ARE YOU REQUESTING POLICE/FIRE/MEDICAL/OTHER CITY SERVICES TO BE 

AVAILABLE FOR THE EVENT:  IF SO, DESCRIBE IN DETAIL WHAT YOU ARE 

REQUESTING AND THE REASON FOR THE REQUEST: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

IS PARKING NEEDED FOR THE EVENT: ___________________ IF YES, PROVIDE AN 

ESTIMATE OF THE NUMBER OF CARS INVOLVED:  _____________________________ 

HERE PROVIDE A DESCRIPTION OF THE PARKING/LOCATION YOU ARE 

REQUESTING: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

PROVIDE PARKING PLAN ON THE ATTACHED SITE PLAN. 



Special Event Permit Application - City of Pryor Page 5 
 

WILL A SHUTTLE SERVICE BE INVOLVED IN THE EVENT: ______________________? 

DESCRIBE ALL SAFETY ASPECTS THAT EVENT STAFF WILL PROVIDE: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACH A COPY OF YOUR COMMITEMENT TO ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF 

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,000,000 NAMING THE 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED IF YOUR EVENT IS BEING 

HELD ON PUBLIC PROPERTY. 

 

DATE THIS APPLICATION WAS SUBMITTED TO THE CITY: ______________________ 

APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE: ________________________ 

 

APPLICABLE PERMIT FEE FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT: __________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________________  ______________________ 

APPLICANT SIGNATURE      DATE 

________________________________________________________________________ 
THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY CITY 

DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: ______________________ 

ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE IN AMOUNT OF: ___________________ 

ACTION TAKEN ON APPLICATION (APPROVED OR DENIED):_________________________________________ 

DATE OF APPROVAL OR DENIAL: __________________________________________________________ 

IF APPROVED, ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF PERMIT ISSUE FEE IN AMOUNT OF:  

______________________________________ 

DESIGNATION OF PERMIT NUMBER ISSUED: ________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE OF CITY OFFICER APPROVING OR DENYING PERMIT 

IF DENIED, REASON FOR DENIAL: _________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT - CITY OF PRYOR CREEK Page 1 
 

SPECIAL EVENT 

PERMIT 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
DATE PERMIT ISSUED: _________________________ PERMIT NUMBER: ________________________ 
DATE(S) OF EVENT: ________________________ 
 
NAME, ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL ADDRESS OF PERSON THAT MADE APPLICATION FOR 
THE PERMIT: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAME, ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER OF BUSINESS OR PERSON TO WHOM PERMIT ISSUED:   
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PERMIT ISSUED FOR EVENT IDENTIFIED AS:  _________________________________________________ 
 
IF SPONSOR IS NON-PROFIT THE TAX EXEMPTION NUMBER IS: _____________________________.  
NOTE:  A COPY OF YOUR NON-PROFIT STATUS LETTER MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS PERMIT. 
 
IF PERMIT ISSUED FOR EVENT UPON PUBLIC PROPERTY A COPY OF THE APPROVED SITE PLAN MUST BE 
ATTACHED TO THIS PERMIT. 
 
IF EVENT NOT ON PUBLIC PROPERTY PROVIDE ADDRESS/PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION OF 
EVENT HERE: __________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS/CONDITIONS OF THE CITY FOR THE EVENT: (IF MORE ROOM NEEDED ATTACH 
ADDITIONAL PAGES:  ___________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CITY SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED TO EVENT AND CHARGES FOR EACH: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
____________________________________________________  ________________________ 
SIGNATURE OF CITY OFFICER APPROVING ISSUING PERMIT  DATE SIGNED 
 
By signing below the event sponsor acknowledges all terms and conditions for issuance of the permit 
as set forth in the permit or attached hereto. 
 
 
____________________________________________________  ________________________ 
Person Receiving Permit      Date Signed 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3 BY ADDING CHAPTER 1A SECTIONS 3-1A-1 

THRU 3-1A-12 TO THE CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES 

COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, REGARDING PURPOSE, DEFINITIONS, 

PERMIT FOR SPECIAL EVENT, CONDITIONS FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT,  USE 

OF CITY PROPERTY, COMPENSATION FOR CITY SERVICES,  CERTIFICATE OF 

INSURANCE, FOODS AND BEVERAGES, OKLAHOMA ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 

CONTROL ACT/LOCAL LICENSE, DOCUMENTATION OF SALES TAX PERMITS, 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER DESIGNATION, RIGHT TO APPEAL; PROVIDING 

FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-

WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 3 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of 

Oklahoma is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 1A, Sections 3-1A-1 thru 3-1A-12 

as follows, to-wit: 

 

CHAPTER 1A 

SPECIAL COMMUNITY EVENTS 

 

SECTION: 

3-1A-1  PURPOSE 

3-1A-2  DEFINITIONS 

3-1A-3  PERMIT FOR SPECIAL EVENT 

3-1A-4  CONDITIONS FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT 

3-1A-5  USE OF CITY PROPERTY 

3-1A-6  COMPENSATION FOR CITY SERVICES 

3-1A-7  CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

3-1A-8  FOODS AND BEVERAGES 

3-1A-9 OKLAHOMA ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL ACT/LOCAL 

LICENSE 

3-1A-10 DOCUMENTATION OF SALES TAX PERMITS: 

3-1A-11 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER DESIGNATION 

3-1A-12 RIGHT TO APPEAL 

 

3-1A-1  PURPOSE: 



 

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the conduct of Special Events within the 

city limits of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma to provide for orderly and 

systematic coordination of events to preserve and protect the public peace, health 

and welfare, to ensure the safety of the public and provide structure for the 

dedication and allocation of public resources to the assistance of the public in 

promotion of the community through Special Events. 

 

3-1A-2  DEFINITIONS: 

The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, shall have the 

following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

SPECIAL EVENT: Any event which is deemed to significantly impact the city, 

adjacent property owners or city services shall be 

considered a special event.  This definition includes, but is 

not necessarily limited to:  (1)  An activity which is open to 

the general public or by invitation only, with or without an 

admission charge; (2)  Any organized formation, parade, 

procession or assembly of persons, which may or may not 

include animals, vehicles, or any combination thereof 

which is to assemble or travel in unison on any street which 

does not comply with normal or usual traffic regulations or 

controls; (3)  Any organized assemblage of persons at any 

park or facility, owned or controlled by the City or other 

governmental agency which is to gather for a common 

purpose under the direction and control of a person; (4)  

Any other organized activity conducted by a sponsoring 

organization or person for a common or collective use, 

purpose or benefit which involves the use of, or has an 

impact on, City property or facilities and the provision of 

city services in response thereto;  (5) Further examples of 

special events include, but are not limited to concerts, 

parades, special interest shows or expos, markets, fairs, 



 

festivals, block parties, community events or mass 

participation sports (such as marathons, running events, 

bicycles races or tours etc.) 

PERSON: The term person includes not only people but also legal 

existing entities registered and existing pursuant to the laws 

of the state of Oklahoma. 

 

3-1A-3  PERMIT FOR SPECIAL EVENT: 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to conduct a special event without a 

valid Special Event Permit issued by the said City.   

B. Violation of this permit requirement shall be an offense and punishable 

pursuant to Title 1, Section 1-4-1 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 

C. The amount of the fee to be paid for the issuance of a Permit pursuant to 

an approved Application for the Permit shall be that as set by the City 

Council from time to time in "Appendix A" of the City Code for the City. 

D. In addition to the fee for issuance of the Permit pursuant to an approved 

Application as set forth in paragraph "C" there shall be assessed an 

administrative processing fee for all Applications for Permits in an amount 

as set by the City Council from time to time in "Appendix A" of the City 

Code for the City. 

E. Non-Profit entities shall be exempt from payment of the fee for issuance 

of the Permit, but shall not be exempt from payment of the fee for 

processing of the Application for Permit. 

F. Permits for Special Events may be issued with special/specific 

requirements and conditions made by the City which are deemed 

reasonably necessary to the accomplishment of the purposes of this 

Chapter. 

G. Failure to adhere to requirements and conditions made by the City upon 

the Permit shall be an offense and punishable pursuant to Title 1, Section 

1-4-1 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 



 

 

3-1A-4  CONDITIONS FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT: 

No Special Event Permit will be issued by the City to an applicant unless and 

until the applicant satisfies the following conditions of issuance: 

A. Applications for a Special Event Permit must be submitted a minimum of 

Ninety (90) days prior to the event date. 

B. Provision to the City of a completed application for Special Event Permit 

on the application form prescribed by the City. 

C. Payment of the prescribed fees to the City for processing the Application 

for Permit and for issuance of a Special Event Permit pursuant to an 

approved Application as set forth in "Appendix A" of the City Code of the 

City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 

D. Approval of the Application for Special Event Permit by the City. 

E. Provision to the City of a commitment to issue a Certificate of General 

Liability Insurance naming the City of Pryor Creek as an additional 

insured in the general aggregate amount of $1,000,000 is required for 

events held on public property, as deemed necessary by the City of Pryor 

Creek. 

F. Written acknowledgment of acceptance by the event sponsor on the face 

of the Permit of the special/specific requirements and conditions made by 

the City for approval of the Special Event. 

  

3-1A-5  USE OF CITY PROPERTY: 

The use of city-owned property, including but not limited to, parking lots, vacant 

lots, parks, and buildings for Special Events shall be at the discretion of the city 

and upon such terms and conditions as may be required by the city giving 

consideration to the nature of the event.   

3-1A-6  COMPENSATION FOR CITY SERVICES: 

At the discretion of the city and giving due consideration to the nature of the 

event, the city may require personnel including but not necessarily limited to 

police and fire at an event.  All costs for city personnel involved during the event 

will be charged to the event sponsor.  It shall be discretionary on the part of the 



 

city to determine the number and type of city personnel necessary to ensure the 

safety of the event participants and community in general minimize the 

inconvenience to the public and reduce the public liability exposure.  Costs 

imposed by this Section may be waived, or partially waived by the City upon 

application for waiver of costs by the event sponsor. The application for cost 

waiver must be made on the Application for Special Event Permit and shall be 

approved or denied at the time of issuance of the Permit and noted upon the 

Permit along with other conditions for of issuance of the permit, if any. 

 

3-1A-7  CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE: 

An original copy of the sponsor's Certificate of General Liability Insurance 

naming the City of Pryor Creek as an additional insured in the general aggregate 

amount of $1,000,000 is required and shall be provided to the City at least 30 

days prior to the event date. Failure to provide the required Certificate of 

Insurance as required by this Section shall result in the immediate revocation of 

the Special Event Permit. 

 

3-1A-8  FOODS AND BEVERAGES: 

A. All persons selling or otherwise distributing foods and beverages at a 

Special Event shall have an approved "Application For Food or Lodging 

Establishment License" issued by the Oklahoma State Department of 

Health.  

B. Copies of all licenses required under this Section shall be provided to the 

City prior to the date of the event by the event sponsor. 

 

3-1A-9 OKLAHOMA ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL ACT/LOCAL 

LICENSE: 

A. All persons engaging in the sale of alcoholic beverages, low point 

alcoholic beverages (including beer) shall be in compliance with the City 

of Pryor Creek occupational tax applicable to such sales. And, provide 

proof of applicable ABLE Commission licenses. 

B. Copies of all official documentation evidencing compliance with this 

section shall be provided to the City prior to the date of the eventby the 

event sponsor. 

 

3-1A-10 DOCUMENTATION OF SALES TAX PERMITS: 

A. All vendors selling any item at the event must have a valid state Sales Tax 

Permit.   



 

B. Any Non-Profit organization which sells items at the event must have 

official written documentation of their exemption from the duty to charge 

and collect sales tax. 

C. Copies of the documentation required by this Section for each vender 

participaing in the event shall be provided to the City prior to the date of 

the event by the event sponsor. 

 

3-1A-11 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER DESIGNATION: 

The City Council shall designate an administrative officer or administrative 

officers of the City whom shall be designated by the City Council to be possessed 

of the authority to carry out the powers, duties and authorities of the City as set 

forth in this Chapter. 

 

3-1A-12 RIGHT TO APPEAL: 

Any person alleged to be aggrieved by a decision of an administrative officer 

designated by the City to act under Section 3-1A-11 shall have a right of appeal of 

the administrative action of such officer as provided for other appeals of 

administrative actions of the City. 

 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular 

session on this         day of                 ___________, 2016 

 

 

 

       __________________________________ 

       JIMMY TRAMEL, MAYOR 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

____________________________ 

K. ELLIS RITCHIE 

Dated:   _________________, 2016 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-_____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3 BY ADDING CHAPTER 2A SECTIONS 3-2A-1 

THRU 3-2A-12 TO THE CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES 

COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, REGARDING MOBILE FOOD SERVICE 

ESTABLISHMENT, PURPOSE,  DEFINITIONS, PERMIT FOR OPERATION 

REQUIRED/OFFENSE, MULTIPLE MOBILE FOOD SERVICE PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT, CONDITIONS FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT, RESTRICTIONS ON 

LOCATIONS OF OPERATION,  RESTRICTIONS ON LOCATION AS TO TIME, 

POSSESSION OF VALID LICENSE AND TAX PERMIT REQUIRED, REASONABLE 

CONDUCT OF OPERATIONS, SPECIAL EVENTS, USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY AND 

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF OPERATIONS, 

APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, APPEALS OF DECISIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-

WIT: 

SECTION 1. 

Title 3 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Mayes County, State of 

Oklahoma is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 2A, Sections 3-2A-1 thru 3-2a-12 

as follows, to-wit: 

 

CHAPTER 2A 

MOBILE FOOD SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT 

 

SECTION: 

3-2A-1: PURPOSE 

3-2A-2: DEFINITIONS 

3-2A-3: PERMIT FOR OPERATION REQUIRED/OFFENSE 

3-2A-4: MULTIPLE MOBILE FOOD SERVICE PERMITS REQUIREMENT 

3-2A-5: CONDITIONS FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT 

3-2A-6: RESTRICTIONS ON LOCATIONS OF OPERATION 

3-2A-7: RESTRICTIONS ON LOCATION AS TO TIME 

3-2A-8: POSSESSION OF VALID LICENSE AND TAX PERMIT REQUIRED 

3-2A-9: REASONABLE CONDUCT OF OPERATIONS 

3-2A-10: SPECIAL EVENTS 

3-2A-11: USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY AND PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY 

3-2A-12: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

3-2A-13: ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



 

3-2A-14: APPEAL OF DECISIONS 

 

 

 

3-2A-1  PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate the actions/operations of Mobile Food 

Service Establishments conducting business operations within the city limits of 

the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma to the limited and restricted extent as 

expressly set forth herein.  It is not the purpose of this chapter to adopt "Health 

Regulations" governing or pertaining to Mobile Food Service Establishments.  

The matters pertaining to "Health Regulations" and enforcement thereof 

pertaining to Mobile Food Service Establishments are matters the City deems 

appropriate and in the best interest of the City to leave to the jurisdiction and 

control of the Oklahoma Department of Health. 

 

3-2A-2  DEFINITIONS: 

The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, shall have the 

following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

FULL-SERVICE MOBILE: A vehicle or trailer designed and equipped to prepare and 

serve open food products. 

MOBILE FOOD SERVICE: This term shall include "Full-Service Mobile", "Pre-

Packaged Mobile", and "Pushcart" as those terms are 

defined herein. 

PRE-PACKAGED MOBILE: A vehicle or trailer limited to the sale of commercially 

manufactured pre-packaged food products. 

PUSHCART: A non-self-propelled vehicle, the operation of which is 

limited to serving non-potentially hazardous foods and/or 

commercially pre-packaged foods. 

 

3-2A-3  PERMIT FOR OPERATION REQUIRED/OFFENSE: 



A. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a Mobile Food Service 

within the city limits of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma without a valid 

Mobile Food Service Permit issued by the said City.   

B. Violation of this permit requirement shall be an offense and punishable 

pursuant to Title 1, Section 1-4-1 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 

C. "OPERATE" as that term is used herein shall mean and be defined as: 

1. Physically participating in the active conduct of the operation of a

Mobile Food Service at the location where such activities are

occurring, Or

2. A person having the authority to direct and/or manage the

operations of a Mobile Food Service, causing the Mobile Food

Service to operate in violation of this Section, regardless of the

person being present at the location where such activities are

occurring.

D. There shall be only one form of Permit issued by the City regardless of 

classification under Section 3-2A-2.  The Permit shall be a "Permit For 

Mobile Food Service Establishment". 

E. There shall be Five (5) classes of permits issued by the City as follows: 

ONE DAY PERMIT (valid for one day specified) 

SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT (valid for duration of time of special event) 

90 DAY PERMIT (valid for specific 90 day period) 

180 DAY PERMIT (valid for specific 180 day period) 

1 YEAR PERMIT (valid for calendar year of issuance) 

F. The amount of the fee to be paid for the issuance of a Permit pursuant to 

an approved Application for the Permit shall be that as set by the City 

Council from time to time in "Appendix A" of the City Code for the City. 

G. In addition to the fee for issuance of the Permit pursuant to an approved 

Application as set forth in paragraph "F" there shall be assessed an 

administrative processing fee for all Applications for Permits in an amount 



as set by the City Council from time to time in "Appendix A" of the City 

Code for the City. 

H. Non-Profit entities shall be exempt from payment of the fee for issuance 

of the Permit, but shall not be exempt from payment of the fee for 

processing of the Application for Permit. 

3-2A-4  MULTIPLE MOBILE FOOD SERVICE PERMITS REQUIREMENT: 

A separate Mobile Food Service Permit shall be required for each individual 

Mobile Food Service being operated within the city limits regardless of common 

ownership thereof. 

3-2A-5  CONDITIONS FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT: 

No Mobile Food Service Permit will be issued by the City to an applicant unless 

and until the applicant satisfies the following conditions of issuance: 

A. Provides to the City a copy of the applicant's approved "Application For 

Food or Lodging Establishment License" issued by the Oklahoma State 

Department of Health. 

B. Provides to the City a copy of the applicant's current, valid Oklahoma 

Sales Tax Permit. 

C. An applicant for issuance of a permit under the status of a Non-Profit, 

Charitable or Religious organization shall provide official written proof of 

exemption from the requirement of collecting sales tax in lieu of the 

requirement of a valid Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit. 

D. An applicant for issuance of a permit under the status of a Non-Profit, 

Charitable or Religious organization shall not be relieved of the obligation 

to provide a copy of the applicant's approved "Application For Food or 

Lodging Establishment License" issued by the Oklahoma State 

Department of Health. 

E. Provision to the City of a completed application for Mobile Food Service 

Permit on the application form prescribed by the City. 



F. Payment of the prescribed fees to the City for processing the Application 

for Permit and for issuance of a Mobile Food Service Permit pursuant to 

an approved Application as set forth in "Appendix A" of the City Code of 

the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 

G. Approval of the Application for Mobile Food Service Permit by the City. 

3-2A-6  RESTRICTIONS ON LOCATIONS OF OPERATION: 

A. Mobile Food Service operations shall be conducted in conformance with 

the restrictions as set forth in this Section.   

B. A first-time violation under paragraphs "2", "3", "4", "5", or "6" hereof 

shall subject the violator to a written warning which may be issued by a 

city law enforcement officer or other appropriate city official as may be 

designated by the City Council to issue such warnings.   

C. A second violation of paragraphs "2", "3", "4", "5", or "6" hereof which 

occurs within Sixty (60) days of the issuance of a warning for any 

violation of any of the aforesaid paragraphs shall result in the issuance of a 

ticket by city law enforcement and shall be deemed an offense punishable 

pursuant to Title 1, Section 1-4-1 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, and shall further serve as sufficient grounds for 

revocation by the City of the Mobile Food Services Permit issued by the 

City at the discretion of the City.   

1. No Mobile Food Service may locate or conduct business

operations within areas designated by the City's Zoning Code as a

"Residential District" where such location or conduct of business

operations involves the stationary parking or placement of the

Mobile Food Service in one location for a period of time exceeding

Ten (10) minutes.  Violation of this provision shall constitute an

Offense upon the occurrence of the first violation and shall further

serve as sufficient grounds for revocation by the City of the Mobile

Food Services Permit issued by the City at the discretion of the

City.



 

2. No Mobile Food Service may locate or conduct business 

operations in such a location or in such a manner as to 

unreasonably inhibit the flow of traffic upon the city streets, public 

use of sidewalks, or public access to alleys as determined in the 

discretion of the City or city or state law enforcement personnel.   

3. No Mobile Food Service may locate or conduct business 

operations in such a location or in such a manner as to inhibit the 

public access to public parking as determined in the discretion of 

the City or city or state law enforcement personnel. 

4. No Mobile Food Service may locate or conduct business 

operations in such a location or in such a manner as to inhibit the 

public access to public parking as determined in the discretion of 

the City or city or state law enforcement personnel. 

5. No Mobile Food Service may locate or conduct business 

operations in such a location or in such a manner as to pose a 

danger, risk or threat to the public safety as determined in the 

discretion of the City or city or state law enforcement personnel. 

6. No Mobile Food Service may locate or conduct business 

operations upon private property located within the City without 

the permission of the owner or other person in authority over the 

private property.   

7. No customer shall be served on the street side of the mobile unit. 

All service must be on the curb side when the mobile unit is on or 

abutting a public street. 

8. No drive thru or drive by customer service shall be provided or 

permitted as part of a mobile food service as contemplated in this 

chapter. 

 

3-2A-7  RESTRICTIONS ON LOCATION AS TO TIME: 

A. No Mobile Food Service may remain located at the same location for in 

excess Twelve (12) hours during any single Twenty-four (24) hour period 

of time. 



B. No Mobile Food Service may locate at the same location in excess of Four 

(4) times during any Twenty-eight (28) day time period. 

3-2A-8  POSSESSION OF VALID LICENSE AND TAX PERMIT REQUIRED: 

A. At all times of operation a Mobile Food Service must maintain and have in 

its possession a copy of its current and valid "Food or Lodging 

Establishment License" issued by the Oklahoma State Department of 

Health and Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit and Mobile Food Services Permit 

issued by the City.  

B. A Mobile Food Service operating within the city limits of the City of 

Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, shall be obligated to produce copies of the 

licenses and permits identified in paragraph "A" for inspection 

immediately upon request by city law enforcement officers or officials. 

C. The failure to comply with the requirements of this Section shall constitute 

and offense punishable pursuant to Title 1, Section 1-4-1 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, and shall further serve 

as sufficient grounds for revocation by the City of the Mobile Food 

Services Permit issued by the City at the discretion of the City. 

3-2A-9  REASONABLE CONDUCT OF OPERATIONS: 

The conduct of the operation of the Mobile Food Service shall be made and 

conducted in such a manner as to not be unreasonably disruptive or offensive to 

the peace, health, safety and welfare of the public.  Loud music, disruptive lights 

and other such activities as may disrupt or offend the peace, health, safety and 

welfare of the public are prohibited.  

3-2A-10 SPECIAL EVENTS: 

At the discretion of the City special exceptions or deviations from the provisions 

of Sections 3-2A-6 (concerning locations) and 3-2A-7 (concerning time) may be 

allowed for special events or special circumstances.  Deviation or exception from 

other provisions of this chapter shall not be allowed.  Any such exception or 

deviation shall be made in advance of the occurrence of the special event or 

special circumstance by unilateral action initiated by the City Council or upon 

advance approval of the City pursuant to an application by the person seeking the 

deviation or exception.  Deviations or exceptions shall not be retroactively 

allowed, approved or valid. 

3-2A-11 USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY AND PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY: 



Use of public property and public rights-of-way for the conduct of Mobile Food 

Service operations shall be allowed as follows: 

A. Use of public streets and rights-of-way is allowed when carried out in 

compliance with the ordinances of this Chapter. 

B. Use of public property such as parks or other public areas may be allowed 

when approved in advance by the City. 

3-2A-12 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

A. Absolutely no seating shall be provided or permitted as part of a mobile 

food service as contemplated in this chapter. 

B. All mobile food service operations shall provide garbage receptacles for 

customer use. 

C. At the conclusion of business activities at a given location the mobile food 

service vendor shall clean all the area surrounding his or her location of all 

debris, trash and litter generated by the vendor's business activities. 

D. All mobile food service vendors preparing food by cooking, frying or 

other means shall be equipped with at least one (1) fire extinguisher with a 

minimum rating of 2A-40-BC. 

E. All electrical connections by mobile food service vendors shall fully 

comply with requirements of the National Electrical Code (NEC). 

3-2A-13 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER DESIGNATION 

The City Council shall designate an administrative officer or administrative 

officers of the City whom shall be designated by the City Council to be possessed 

of the authority to carry out the powers, duties and authorities of the City as set 

forth in this Chapter. 

3-2A-14 RIGHT TO APPEAL 

Any person alleged to be aggrieved by a decision of an administrative officer 

designated by the City to act under Section 3-2A-13 shall have a right of appeal of 

the administrative action of such officer as provided for other appeals of 

administrative actions of the City. 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular 

session on this         day of                 ___________ , 2016 

__________________________________ 

JIMMY TRAMEL, MAYOR 



ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

EVA SMITH, CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

____________________________ 

K. ELLIS RITCHIE 

Dated:   _________________, 2016 



MOBILE FOOD SERVICE PERMIT APPLICATION CITY OF PRYOR CREEK Page 1 

MOBILE FOOD SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT 
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
(THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED LEGIBLY OR IT WILL BE REJECTED) 

NAME, ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL ADDRESS OF PERSON MAKING APPLICATION: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

NAME, ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBER OF BUSINESS:  ________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

INDICATE WHETHER THE BUSINESS IS A (SOLE PROPRIERTORSHIP) (CORPORATION) (LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY) (LIMITED PARTNERSHIP) (NON-PROFIT), OR (OTHER):________________________________ 
IF "OTHER" SPECIFY THE TYPE OF BUSINESS ENTITY IT IS: _______________________________________ 

INDICATE THE FORMAL POSITION HELD BY THE PERSON MAKING THE APPLICATION WITH THE BUSINESS 
ENTITY.  EXAMPLE:  "OWNER", "MANAGER", "EMPLOYEE":_____________________________________ 

INDICATE YOUR FEDERAL EMPLOYER TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OR OTHER FEDERAL TAX NUMBER 
HERE:  __________________________________________ 

INDICATE WHETHER YOUR OPERATION IS A "FULL-SERVICE MOBILE", "PRE-PACKAGED MOBILE", OR 
"PUSHCART" AS DEFINED BY SECTION 3-2A-2 OF THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

INDICATE NUMBER OF PERMITS REQUESTED: __________________.  NOTE: A SEPARATE PERMIT IS 
REQUIRED FOR EACH MOBILE FOOD SERVICE TO BE OPERATED WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS. 

HERE INDICATE THE TYPE OF PERMIT FOR WHICH YOU ARE MAKING APPLICATION: 

_________ ONE DAY PERMIT (valid for one day specified) 

SPECIFIC DATE REQUESTED: _____________________________________ 

_________ SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT (valid for duration of time of special event) 

EVENT NAME AND DATES OF EVENT: _____________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________ 

_________ 90 DAY PERMIT (valid for specific 90 day period from date of issuance) 

_________ 180 DAY PERMIT (valid for specific 180 day period from date of issuance) 

_________ 1 YEAR PERMIT (valid for calendar year of issuance) 



MOBILE FOOD SERVICE PERMIT APPLICATION CITY OF PRYOR CREEK Page 2 

HERE INDICATE THE DATE OF ISSUANCE OF YOUR OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOOD OR 
LODGING ESTABLISHMENT LICENSE/PERMIT:  _________________________________.  NOTE:  A COPY 
OF THIS CURRENT, VALID LICENSE OR PERMIT MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS APPLICATION. 

HERE INDICATE YOUR OKLAHOMA SALES TAX PERMIT NUMBER: _____________________________.  
NOTE:  A COPY OF THIS CURRENT, VALID SALES TAX PERMIT MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS APPLICATION. 

IF YOU ARE APPLYING AS A NON-PROFIT PROVIDE YOUR NON-PROFIT EXEMPTION NUMBER HERE: 
_____________________________.  NOTE:  A COPY OF YOUR NON-PROFIT STATUS LETTER MUST BE 
ATTACHED TO THIS APPLICATION. 

HERE INDICATE WHETHER YOU ARE REQUESTING BY THIS PERMIT TO LOCATE ON PUBLIC PROPERTY 
SUCH AS A PARK OR OTHER PUBLIC AREA: ________________________.  IF YES, ATTACH A WRITTEN 
IDENTIFICATION OF THE PRECISE LOCATION(S) YOU ARE REQUESTING PERMISSION TO USE AND YOU 
MUST INCLUDE A SITE PLAN OF THE PROPOSED LOCATION SETTING FORTH A DRAWING OF THE AREA 
AND YOUR PROPOSED SET UP ON THE LOCATION.  NOTE:  USE OF PUBLIC STREETS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 
IS ALLOWED WITHOUT ADVANCE APPROVAL PROVIDED THE OPERATIONS ARE CARRIED OUT IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY. 

BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION THE APPLICANT REPRESENTS AFFIRMATIVELY THAT APPLICANT HAS 
READ THE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 3-2A-1 THRU 3-2A-12 OF THE CITY CODE FOR THE CITY OF PRYOR 
AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT APPLICANT SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL PROVISIONS THEREOF IN THE 
OPERATION OF ITS MOBILE FOOD SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT. 

APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE: ________________________ 

APPLICABLE PERMIT FEE FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMIT: __________________________ 

_____________________________________________ ______________________ 
APPLICANT SIGNATURE  DATE 

________________________________________________________________________ 
THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY CITY 

DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: ______________________ 
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF APPLICATION PROCESSING FEE IN AMOUNT OF: _____________________ 
ACTION TAKEN ON APPLICATION (APPROVED OR DENIED):____________________________________ 
DATE OF APPROVAL OR DENIAL: __________________________________________________________ 
IF APPROVED, ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF PERMIT ISSUE FEE IN AMOUNT OF:  ____________ 
DESIGNATION OF PERMIT NUMBER ISSUED: ________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE OF CITY OFFICER APPROVING OR DENYING PERMIT 
IF DENIED, REASON FOR DENIAL: _________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 








































































































	20160929 AGENDA PACKET
	20160929 AGENDA PACKET
	OIM20160829 (special)
	160920 SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION
	160920 SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT
	160920 Title 3 Chapter 1A Special Community Events
	160917 Title 3 Chapter 2A Mobile Food Service
	160918 APPLICATION FOR MOBILE FOOD SERVICE PERMIT
	ORDINANCE 2015-17
	ORDINANCE 2015-18


	Sharp_MX3640_CityHall@pryorcreek.org_20160927_102956



